
MINUTES 

  

TCC WORKING GROUP MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 9, 2025 

WILLIAM L. PULLEN MUNICIPAL BUILDING MEETING ROOM 

ONLINE NON-INTERACTIVE ON TOWN HALL STREAMS 

6:00 p.m. 

 
Present: Todd Souza (Town Manager), Wayne Kirkpatrick, John Mountainland, Steve 

Migliorini, Abraham Knight, and Matt Eddy (MCOG) via phone 

 

1. Meeting called to order: at 6:30 p.m. 

 

Matt said Volunteers of America is interested in doing a project. A Rockland 

organization dropped out. John said he has an issue with VOA. Matt said they have no 

funding guaranteed at this point, no funding stream, and have had trouble getting funding 

for the Waldoboro project, but they are a legitimate housing organization.  

 

Matt said it’s important that there is no funding guaranteed. We still have to get the 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG). They still want Developers 

Collaborative (DC) to do the work. We still have to address the water issue. 

 

John’s concern is they have no money and have been working on the Waldoboro project 

for six years. He doesn’t think it’s viable to get involved with that group. Matt said they 

would use a different funding stream. He felt DC would be able to get them in place to 

apply for the 4% low income tax credit but said he did not disagree with John. John said 

he also has issues with DC. Matt said they are a reputable firm. 

 

Wayne asked about the time frame for them to commit funding, as we are into this for the 

third year. He also asked if we got the tax credits for the historical part of it. Matt said the 

next step is accessing the tax credits as you go forward; they are available now. 

 

Steve confirmed with Matt that we have been notified at the federal level that both 

buildings qualify for tax credits. The next step is to begin doing the applications for the 

tax credit itself. 

 

John said what about our $12,000 from DC that they agreed to send us back if it qualifies. 

Matt said if it qualifies and the project goes forward, they will give it back to you.  

 

Steve said, “Define goes forward.”  

 

Matt said, “Progressing.” 

 

Wayne went back to the timeline. Matt said it’s fueled by the CDBG, which we can’t 

apply for until spring of next year. We can apply for he low income tax credit at any time 



TCC Working Group Meeting Minutes – April 9, 2025 

 

 

 

 

Page 2 of 5 
 

that DC and VOA are ready to pursue it. It’s a floating application process that also goes 

through Maine Housing.  

 

Steve confirmed it is a state process but doesn’t have a timeline. You apply, you start the 

process. Matt added four percent low income tax credits are always available. Abraham 

confirmed it is through the Maine Housing Authority. 

 

In answer to Wayne, Matt said if they all decide to do this and move forward, they would 

be submitting the low income tax credits as soon as possible. 

 

Todd clarified VOA leadership says they’re interested. They have to get approval from 

their board. Steve asked if it’s a national board and where they are located. Matt said he’s 

not sure but they have a state organization in Maine so he believes it’s that one. 

 

Todd said that would be the first benchmark: give VOA a timeline (to get approval from 

their board). We would then ask them for a projected timeline on the next steps: confirm 

DC partnership, and when can you apply for the 4% credit. We know CDBG is in spring.  

 

John said that’s for both buildings, correct? Matt said the Union school building is 

presented in the DC proposal. The other building comes along with it. Todd clarified the 

DC proposal was to rehab the school building and potentially add more to the grass 

space. DC was not interested in the brick building. The theory was any extra TIF money 

could go to renovate the TCC potentially. In answer to Todd, Matt said he is not sure that 

is still the model that VOA is looking for. 

 

Todd pointed out that VOA would have to say we want yellow, or we want yellow and 

brick. DC’s proposal was just yellow. Steve said that’s the only building for which the 

voters have given us permission to enter into an agreement for senior housing; we have 

not been given permission to do anything with the brick building. 

 

Discussion followed. Wayne said he’d like to keep all the options open. All concurred.  

 

In answer to Steve, Matt said the 4% low income tax credits can be for any size, 

generally 15 to 25 units to make it work; it’s just the way the equity works. What we 

have would fit, which is what DC came back to us with. There is an income range for 

residents in this housing based on this loan program. 

 

Steve confirmed VOA can utilize the historic tax credits. They are a nonprofit. Steve 

asked about TIF. Matt thought with the pro forma that DC ran, they felt they would need 

75% in TIF, he thought for five or 10 years. After that it drops, Todd said, and you get 

more back every year in that pro forma. There are a lot of moving parts. 

 

Abraham said he’s been looking at the building. He does not know if it will last another 

year without putting a roof on it. The town will have to put probably $300,000 in it. 

 



TCC Working Group Meeting Minutes – April 9, 2025 

 

 

 

 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Matt said the second group we talked to, and they walked thorugh the building with us, 

was the Maine Redevelopment Land Bank Authority (MRLBA) – new in Maine, funded 

through waste removal, with a funding stream of one to two million a year in ability to 

bond. Their primary role is to walk in and take control of buildings and keep them afloat, 

and put in whatever needs to be put into them to maintain them over a period of time, 

while you look to redevelop. You give up a little bit of control of the building while they 

seek funding to make the housing and the redevelopment of the brick building work. Matt 

doesn’t think we’re there yet, but what Abe is saying is important. It would be a question 

to ask them: if you’re going to do this, would you put in money to stabilize the building? 

 

Steve confirmed MRLBA has the money to do this, assuming they don’t have to pay for 

the building Matt said. You could do a friendly turnover, a builder reverter clause to give 

it back if nothing ends up working out. MRLBA has not yet done a major project. 

 

Abraham asked what control we would lose. Matt said if they’re going to invest in and 

stabilize the building, they want to know they can go for a few years and figure out how 

to get it developed. They have to make that decision on their side. 

 

In answer to Todd, Matt said the town could stipulate senior low income housing, or any 

stipulations you want. He added there is room to maintain a reasonable level of control in 

terms of use, and if nothing happens getting it back, or turn it over to them altogether. 

 

Abraham asked if we can make them guarantee that they will keep the building up. Matt 

said he thought they would have to demonstrate that they’re prepared to do that. Abraham 

said we don’t want them to take control and then just have it deteriorate. 

 

Todd said at some point a developer is going to say it’s too costly to keep the building up. 

If the intent is to keep it up and reuse it, that’s part of your decision-making process. Or is 

it, the intent is, until it doesn’t make sense? If there are caveats in an agreement, that is a 

consideration. 

 

Matt suggested getting VOA to come talk to the working group as well as Tuck O’Brien 

from MRLBA – two different options and two choices, said Todd. Discussion followed. 

 

Todd said we can put as part of a stipulation if senior housing doesn’t happen in this 

timeframe, say two years, the building goes back to the town so it can decide what it 

wants to do. He does not want endless options, he wants benchmarks. Matt agreed. Todd 

said if the model changes, our partners may have to change. He assumes it’s cheaper for 

developers to take care of building issues than the town. Abraham said he’s particularly 

interested in talking with MRLBA.  

 

Re: water, Todd said Matt, Dan, and he had a zoom meeting with Maine Water. They 

went through their different sites and challenges in Union. They looked at areas in town 

that could potentially yield water. Todd explained we have 20 acres, and they did a site 

walk out back. They will come back and test.  



TCC Working Group Meeting Minutes – April 9, 2025 

 

 

 

 

Page 4 of 5 
 

Todd said the ultimate challenge in town right now is there is not enough water flow to 

put anymore out. This leads to multiple challenges for us. Steel-Pro needs water, as does 

any future (commercial) development on Rt. 17. He said getting water in town is very 

important to long term development. All concurred. He will follow up with Maine Water.  

 

Matt asked the group to be thinking about the larger picture: how do you ensure 

substantial water flow in the whole Rt. 17/village area, and how you get there, and how 

they would help you get there. It’s a build-out scenario. Our pipes are all different sizes. 

 

Todd also mentioned challenges re: paving around the Common. That area needs to be 

master planned including piping, as well as some DOT projects on Rt. 17. We have some 

choices to make. 

 

In answer to Steve, Todd said Maine Water is not responsible for paying for piping 

infrastructure. They are the provider. They can look at other avenues. It’s the town’s 

responsibility, even on Rt. 17 Matthew confirmed. 

 

Matt said he looks at this as a timely opportunity – how to get that system in place in the 

right way. We could utilize some TIF proceeds from Steel-Pro in combination with some 

other either low income loans or through bonding sources to actually think about building 

that facility out, which increases the value of properties on Rt. 17 and increases potential 

for future investment and activity. 

 

More discussion followed. 

 

Re: 4% low income housing tax credits, Matt said 30% of the units have to be at low 

income level which is 80% of median income or less. The state will try to negotiate for 

more low income housing units. The rest can be at fair market value. He will pursue 

getting the two interested entities, VOA and MRLBA, to meet. 

 

Todd confirmed the group is ok if Matt contacts VOA and says bring it to your board. He 

reiterated the two steps to report back to the select board on Tuesday: 1) we have 

authorized Matthew to set up a meeting with the land bank to understand their process, 

and 2) authorized him to reach out to VOA to say please take this potential offer to your 

board for validation, and then we would set up a meeting with them.  

 

Todd will continue conversations with Maine Water. He asked Matt and Dan to keep an 

eye out for any other funding sources for water or economic development. Steve 

confirmed the water issue should be the third thing brought up to the select board. 

 

Abraham mentioned a developer who’d been interested in work force housing. Matt said 

it would still have to be subsidized. 

 

Steve thanked Todd for reaching out to Maine Water. 

 



TCC Working Group Meeting Minutes – April 9, 2025 

 

 

 

 

Page 5 of 5 
 

2. Adjourn: 

 

Motion by: Wayne Kirkpatrick 

2nd by: Steve Migliorini 

4-0 

 

Meeting adjourned at 7:29 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Sherry Abaldo 

Secretary 


